
Agenda
Sumter County Council

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, May 14, 2019  Held at 6:00 PM.

Sumter County Administration Building – County Council Chambers
Third Floor, 13 E. Canal Street, Sumter, SC

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
   1) Chairman Or Vice Chairman Of Sumter County Council

2. INVOCATION: Council Member, Staff, or Member of the Public

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: May 14, 2019

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:     Regular Meeting Held On 
   1) Regular Meeting Tuesday, April 23, 2019 

6. LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 

  

1) RZ1905    526  Godwin  Street  (County)    First  Reading   Request  To  Rezone  A  +/4.98  Acre  Parcel 
Located At 526 Godwin Street From Residential15  (R15) To Agricultural Conservation  (AC). The Property  Is 
Represented By Tax Map # 2450602003.

  

2) RZ1906  1449 Camden Highway (County)  First Reading  Request To Rezone +/45.78 Acres Located 
At  1449  Camden  Highway  From  Agricultural  Conservation  (Ac)  To  Residential15  (R15).  The  Property  Is 
Represented By Tax Map # 2020003030 (Part).

  

3) RZ1904 – Third Reading  Beulah Cuttino Road (County)  Request To Rezone A +/74.69 Acre Parcel 
Located On Beulah Cuttino Road From Residential15 (R15) To Agricultural Conservation (AC). The Property Is 
Represented By Tax Map #2220001013. (Council Will Hold A Public Hearing Prior To Action On Second 
Reading Of This Rezoning Request.)

7. OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS:
   1) None

8. NEW BUSINESS:

  

1) 19908 – First Reading  An Ordinance To Provide For A Levy Of Taxes For County Purposes Of Sumter 
County, S. C., (Known As The Budget Ordinance) For The Fiscal Year Of Said County Beginning July 1, 2019, To 
Direct The Expenditures Of Said Taxes And Other Funds Of Said County, And To Provide For Other Matters 
Related Thereto. (Title Only)

  
2) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An Economic Development Matter, An 
Employment Matter, A Legal Briefing, Or Other Matters Pertaining To An Executive Session, And  Take 
Appropriate Actions Thereafter If Required.  



Agenda – Regular Meeting  Sumter County Council
May 14, 2019
Page 2 of 2

9. OLD BUSINESS:

   1) 19907 – Third Reading  An Ordinance To Amend Sumter County Code Of Ordinances, Sections 619, 620 
And 623 Of Chapter 6, Article II, Relating To Dogs And Other Animals.  

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS:

  
1) Budget Workshop To Be Held At 5:00 p.m. On Tuesday, May 14, 2019, In County Council’s Chambers.

   2) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Trainings, And/Or Conferences; And Any Other Council 
Comments.   

11. MONTHLY REPORTS:
   1) Mary McLeod Bethune Festival

  
2) Sheriff's Department Monthly Report

  
3) Emerging Leaders Graduation

  
4) Bluegrass and BBQ

   5) Ribbon Cutting  Seaco

12. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:

13. PUBLIC COMMENT:

14. ADJOURNMENT:

In compliance with ADA/Section 504, Sumter County Is Prepared To Make Accommodations For Individuals Needing Assistance To 
Participate In Our Programs, Services, Or Activities.

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, notice of the meeting, date, time, place of meeting and agenda was posted on the bulletin 
board at the County Administrative Office, 13 East Canal Street, Sumter, SC and the Sumter County website www.sumtercountysc.org 

under Our Council Agenda/Minutes. In addition, the agenda electronically sent to newspapers, radio stations, television, and concerned 
citizens

http://www.sumtercountysc.org


Minutes
Sumter County Council

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, April 23, 2019 -- Held at 6:00 p.m.

County Administration Building -- County Council Chambers
13 E. Canal Street, Sumter, SC

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  James T. McCain, Jr., Chairman; James Byrd, Jr., Vice Chairman; Artie 
Baker, Eugene Baten, Charles T. Edens, Vivian Fleming McGhaney, and Chris Sumpter.  

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  None

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Gary Mixon, Mary W. Blanding, Johnathan Bryan, Valerie Brunson, Keysa 
Rogers; Helen Roodman, Joe Perry; Allen Dailey, Jeffery Richardson, and two Sheriff’s Deputies; 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:  Approximately 63 members of the public were in attendance.  

MEDIA:  The Item Newspaper; Rachel Pittman 

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman McCain called this meeting of April 23, 2019, to order.
   
INVOCATION: Council Member Vivian Fleming McGhaney gave the invocation.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  All in attendance repeated the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Chairman McCain asked Mary Blanding, the Clerk to Council, if there were any 
changes to the agenda for this meeting.  She asked if Council would agree to move Item #1 Under New Business to 
be heard immediately after actions on the Minutes of April 9, 2019.  Chairman McCain stated that he would entertain 
a motion concerning the approval of the agenda as recommended by the Clerk to Council.

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baker, seconded by Councilman Baten, and unanimously 
carried by Council to grant approval of the agenda as outlined by the Clerk.  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Chairman McCain asked for a motion to adopt the minutes of Council’s Regular 
Meeting held on Tuesday, April 9, 2019.

 ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Baten, seconded by Councilman Sumpter, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant approval of the Minutes of April 9, 2019, as presented by the 
Clerk.  

NEW BUSINESS: 
(1) Recognition of Ms. Valerie A. Brunson, Sumter County’s Veteran Affairs Officer, For Being Named The 2019 

Veterans Service Officer of the Year By The S. C. Association Of County Veteran Service Officers.

The Honorable J. David Weeks, former Chairman of the Sumter County Legislative Delegation, presented this 
agenda item to Council.  He stated that after the vacancy in the Veterans Affairs Office, the Delegation decided 
that when they hire the next person, this person would need to be a veteran and a person that is sensitive to the 
needs of the veterans and willing to work to make the Veterans Affairs Office a place for the veterans to come 
with expectations of excellent services from those working in the office.  

Representative Weeks stated that he did not participate in the voting for obvious reasons (Ms. Brunson is his 
niece.)  However, Ms. Brunson has done an excellent job.  Once there were many complaints, but now there are 
calls from the veterans about the many positive projects, services, programs, events, etc. that have been 



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 23, 2019
Page 2

implemented under her leadership.  Also, during a recent statewide meeting of the Veterans Affairs Service 
Officers, Valerie Brunson was selected as the Veterans Affairs Office of The Year for 2019.  

Representative Weeks presented the Trophy to Valerie Brunson on behalf of the S. C. Association Of County 
Veteran Service Officers. Members of Sumter County Council also presented Ms. Brunson with a gift and 
pictures were taken with Mrs. Brunson, Council members, and Representative Weeks.  

Councilman Baten stated that, as a veteran, he can truly say that the Veterans in this community have the utmost 
respect for Ms. Brunson.  He also said that he believes that Sumter County has the best Veterans Affairs Director 
not only in the state, but in the nation.  

LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 
Planned Development/Rezoning Requests

(1) RZ-19-04 – Second Reading/Public Hearing -- Beulah Cuttino Road (County) -- Request To Rezone A +/-
74.69 Acre Parcel Located On Beulah Cuttino Road From Residential-15 (R-15) To Agricultural Conservation 
(AC). The Property Is Represented By Tax Map #222-00-01-013. (Council Will Hold A Public Hearing Prior 
To Action On Second Reading Of This Rezoning Request.)

Helen Roodman presented this proposed request to Council for second reading consideration.  She stated that 
Donnie Beard and Robin Beard, the owners and applicants for this request, were not present during this meeting.  
The request is to rezone approximately 75 acres of property located on Beulah Cuttino Road from Residential-
15 to Agricultural Conservation.  
The Beards hope to use 
approximately 3+ acres of this 
property for a home that they plan 
to build.  The other portion of the 
property will be used for other 
agricultural purposes.  The 
Planning Commission and 
Planning staff recommends 
approval of the request as 
presented.  

Public Hearing
Mr. Dreyfus Williams stated that 
he has a parcel of land connecting 
to the property on Beulah Cuttino 
Road.  He also stated said that the property he owns has been in his family since the 1800’s.  The property has 
been used for agricultural property during the 1800’s; his family worked on the property.  He stated that he is 
proud to stand on behalf of allowing the properties to remain as agricultural property.  He supports agricultural 
land.  A big mistake is on the way if we do not stand for agricultural property which will affect food, cultural, 
transportation, medication, clothing, and many other areas.  We must come together as citizens to protect 
agricultural property.  

After Mr. Williams’ comments, Chairman McCain asked if anyone else wished to speak.  No one else spoke; 
therefore, the Chairman closed the public hearing and Council took action on second reading.  

ACTION:  MOTION was made by Councilman Edens, seconded by Vice Chairman Byrd, and 
unanimously carried by Council to grant second reading approval.  



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 23, 2019
Page 3

OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

(1) 19-907 – An Ordinance To Amend Sumter County Code Of Ordinances, Sections 6-19, 6-20 And 6-23 Of 
Chapter 6, Article II, Relating To Dogs And Other Animals.  (Council Will Take Action Third Reading 
Immediately After The Public Hearing Or During Old Business.)

Prior to the public hearing, Councilman Edens stated that he has not been having problems with his email and did 
not see the information about the ordinance until today.  He further stated that it was his understanding that there 
was information in the ordinance about the adoption of puppies.  He asked the County Attorney, Mr. Bryan if there 
was additional language that should have been included in the ordinance about the puppies.  Mr. Bryan stated that 
there was some discussion, but no decisions were made about what was, if anything, would be included about 
adoption of puppies.  

Councilman Edens asked that this matter be deferred until such time that Council can discuss this matter with those 
that will be running the animal shelter and law enforcement about what is to be done with puppies if they are brought 
to the Animal Shelter. 

Because a public hearing was advertised for this meeting, the Chairman stated that he would proceed with the public 
hearing, and if necessary reschedule another at a later date.  After the public hearing, action on the ordinance is 
recorded under Old Business.  

Chairman McCain convened the public hearing; he asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of or opposition to this 
proposed ordinance as presented.  No one spoke to this matter; therefore, the Chairman closed the public hearing 
and Council took action on third reading.  

NEW BUSINESS: 

(1) Recognition of Ms. Valerie A. Brunson, Sumter County’s Veteran Affairs Officer, For Being Named The 2019 
Veterans Service Officer of the Year By The S. C. Association Of County Veteran Service Officers.

This matter was heard earlier in the meeting right after the approval of the minutes as listed above.  

(2) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An Economic Development Matter, An 
Employment Matter, A Legal Briefing, Or Other Matters Pertaining To An Executive Session, And  Take 
Appropriate Actions Thereafter If Required.  

No executive session was held.  

OLD BUSINESS: 

(1) 19-907 – Third Reading -- An Ordinance To Amend Sumter County Code Of Ordinances, Sections 6-19, 6-20 
And 6-23 Of Chapter 6, Article II, Relating To Dogs And Other Animals.  

After discussion on this matter, as listed under public hearing, the Chairman called for a motion on third reading.  

 ACTION: MOTION was made by Councilman Edens, seconded by Councilman Byrd, and unanimously 
carried by Council to defer third reading until such time that the appropriate staff can meet along with 
Councilman Edens to discuss the inclusion of adoption of puppies in this proposed ordinance.  If necessary, 
another public hearing will be scheduled.  



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 23, 2019
Page 4

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

(1) Budget Workshop To Be Held At 5:00 p.m. On Tuesday, April 23, 2019, In County Council’s Chambers.

The County Administrator, Gary Mixon, stated that Council and staff had a budget workshop today for about 
one hour.  The County’s projected revenue stream for the impending year is $50,517,369.  This is a very fluid 
number at this time.  Based on the information we have today.  Mr. Mixon thanked Mr. James Michaelson, the 
County’s Finance Director, for being very thorough in his presentation concerning the budget projects for the 
remaining of the year and the upcoming fiscal year.  

Mr. Mixon stated that the next budget workshop will involve the expenditure for County Government and it will 
be held on April 30, 2019.  The time will be determined later.   

(2) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Trainings, And/Or Conferences; And Any Other Council 
Comments.   

No report was given.  

MONTHLY REPORTS
 Sumter County Sheriff's Office Monthly Report
 Mayor's Prayer Breakfast
 Law Enforcement Prayer Breakfast
 Mary McLeod Bethune Festival/Celebration
 Building Department Report
 Planning Commission Meeting

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
No report was given.  

PUBLIC COMMENT
Larry Huff – stated that he is the Chairman of the Sumter County’s Veterans Association and Valerie is the Secretary 
of the Association.  He also asked Council members and other members of the public that if they know a veteran, ask 
them to become a member of some of the local Veterans organizations.  

Since the Veteran’s Park will not be completed by the event’s date, the program will be held at the American Legion 
on Artillery Drive.  All Council members are asked to attend.  Mr. Huff also elaborated on the great job that Valerie 
Brunson is doing for the veterans.    

Jackie Humes asked Council members not to bail out the School District Board by balancing the budget on the 
taxpayers.    She also read a statement about what she spoke to the School District Board and asked them to do what 
they were elected to do for the students and teachers of this County.  Ms. Humes further stated that she worked with 
Valerie Brunson and enjoyed her time working as the van driver for the Veterans.  She also said that Valerie is an 
asset to this County and a great help for the veterans.  Mrs. Humes asked Council to provide her with an update about 
the litter problem in Sumter.  The Chairman asked Ms. Humes to talk to Mr. Mixon after the meeting.  

ADJOURNMENT
After all discussion and all comments from the public, Motion was made by Councilman Edens, seconded by 
Councilman Sumpter to adjourn the meeting of Sumter County Council at 6:33 p.m.  

Respectfully submitted,



Minutes – Regular Meeting - Sumter County Council
Tuesday, April 23, 2019
Page 5

___________________________             __________________________
Chairman or Vice Chairman                                                Clerk to County Council 
Sumter County Council                                                         Sumter County Council

Approved: ___________________
********************************************************************************************
**********
I certify that public and media notification of the above-mentioned meeting was given prior thereto as follows 
required by Freedom of Information:

Public Notified: Yes

Manner Notified: Agendas posted on bulletin board on third floor of the Administration Building.

Date Posted: April 22, 2019

Media Notified: Yes  

Manner Notified: Agenda Information is listed on Sumter County’s Home Page, and E-mailed to The Item, 
The Chamber, WIS-TV, WBTW, and Time Warner Cable.  

Date Notified: April 18, 2019

Respectfully submitted,

Mary W. Blanding
Mary W. Blanding

James T. McCain, Jr. Mary W. Blanding



Sumter City-County
Planning Department

DERON L. MCCORMICK                                                               GEORGE K. MCGREGOR                                                                          
GARY M. MIXON
CITY MANAGER                                                                                PLANNING DIRECTOR                                                       COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR

12 WEST LIBERTY STREET   •   PO BOX 1449   •   SUMTER, SC 29151
OFFICE: (803) 774-1660   •   FAX (803) 774-1687

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mary Blanding, Clerk to County Council

FROM: George K. McGregor, AICP, Planning Director

DATE: April 16, 2019

SUBJECT: COUNTY COUNCIL AGENDA – APRIL 23, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Commission will have the following land use item(s) for 
review at County Council on Tuesday, April 23, 2019:

SECOND READING / PUBLIC HEARING

RZ-19-04, Beulah Cuttino Rd. (County)
Request to rezone a +/-74.69 acre parcel located on Beulah Cuttino Rd. 
from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC). The property is 
represented by Tax Map # 222-00-01-013.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (803) 774-1660.



Sumter County Council
May 14, 2019
First Reading

Planning Commission Staff Report

RZ-19-05, 526 Godwin St. (County)

THE REQUEST

Applicant: Camille and John Jolly

Status of the Applicant: Property Owner

Request: A request to rezone a +/- 4.98 acre parcel from Residential-15 (R-
15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC)

Location: 526 Godwin St.

Size of Property: +/- 4.98 acres

Present Use/Zoning: Residential / R-15

Proposed Use of Property: Residential & Commercial

Tax Map Reference: 245-06-02-003

Adjacent Property Land 
Use and Zoning:

North – Residence / Residential-15 (R-15)
South – Residence / Agricultural Conservation (AC)
East –   Undeveloped / Residential-15 (R-15)
West – Residence / Residential-15 (R-15)

II.  BACKGROUND

The applicant is requesting this rezoning as 
the result of a zoning enforcement 
investigation.  It was found that an 
automotive repair shop has been operating 
on the property without proper business 
licenses.  Residential-15 (R-15) zoning 
does not allow for Commercial uses. The 
request is to rezone the +/- 4.98 acre parcel 
from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural 
Conservation (AC) in order to legally use 
the property for an automotive repair 
service.



In the Agricultural Conservation (AC) zoning district Auto Repair is considered a Conditional-300 
use (C-300) subject to Planning Staff review and approval. In addition to Staff review, signatures 
from at least 70% of the surrounding property owners within 300 feet of the subject parcel are 
required as part of the Conditional Use Approval process.
 
Historically, the property has a business license for go-kart sales, but in 2016 the business license 
was discontinued by the business owner.  The applicant’s family has lived on this property since 
this area was first developed, and multiple businesses have operated out of the existing shop 
building, however; automotive repair has never been a legally licensed use.  This rezoning request 
is an effort bring the property into compliance with current zoning regulations and business 
licensing requirements. 

View of the property from Godwin St.

As shown on the zoning map to the 
right the subject property is currently 
zoned R-15. Adjacent to the subject 
property to the north, east, and west is 
R-15 zoning.  To the immediate south, 
the property abuts AC zoning.
 
The purpose of the AC zoning 
designation is to protect and preserve 
areas of the county which are presently 
rural or agricultural in character and 
use, and are uniquely suited to 
agricultural uses.  

While the AC zoning designation 
allows for Single-Family dwellings and 
Agricultural Uses by right, there are a host of commercial activities that are classified as 
conditional uses within the district, this includes automotive repair as a C-300 use.

If the property is successfully rezoned it will be possible to file a conditional use application for 
Auto Repair to operate on the property.  At that time, the property will be brought up to site 
development standards as required for Auto Repair. 



III. COMPATIBILITY WITH 
THE 2030 COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN

As shown in the 2030 Land Use Map, 
the property is located within the Rural 
Development planning area. 
The goal of the Rural Development 
planning area is to support low-density 
residential development and selected 
non-residential and agricultural uses in 
a relaxed regulatory climate. At no 
greater than one unit per acre.

Staff finds that the request is 
compatible with the 2030 Plan. 

IV. TRAFFIC REVIEW

Godwin St. is an SCDOT owned two lane road which is functionally classified as a Local Road. 
Godwin St. does not have an annual daily trip count (AADT) conducted by SCDOT.  Godwin St. 
is located off of US-15 North.  The nearest SCDOT AADT in the vicinity is located on US-15 
North.  In 2017 US-15 North received an AADT of 6400.

The 2010-2040 Sumter Long Range Transportation Plan does not propose any changes to Godwin 
St. or to US-15 North.

Where applicable, any proposed future development at the subject property will have its 
transportation impacts evaluated at time of site plan approval with appropriate mitigation measures 
required.

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The request to rezone +/- 4.98 acres from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC) 
is supported by the 2030 Future Land Use policies.  

VI. PLANNING COMMISSION – APRIL 24, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Commission at its meeting on Wednesday, April 24, 2019, 
voted to recommend approval of this request.

VII. COUNTY COUNCIL – MAY 14, 2019 – FIRST READING











Sumter County Council
May 14, 2019
First Reading

Planning Commission Staff Report

RZ-19-06, 1449 Camden Hwy. (County)

THE REQUEST

Applicant: Bradford Meadows Development Co. LLC

Status of the Applicant: Developer

Request: A request to rezone a +/- 45.78 acre portion of a 147.9 acre parcel 
from Agricultural Conservation (AC) to Residential-15 (R-15).

Location: 1449 Camden Hwy.

Size of Property: +/- 45.78

Present Use/Zoning: Undeveloped / AC

Proposed Use of Property: Residential Subdivision

Tax Map Reference: 202-00-03-030 (Part)

Adjacent Property Land 
Use and Zoning:

North –Undeveloped / General Commercial
South – Bradford Subdivision / R-9 and AC
East –  Undeveloped / Agricultural Conservation
West – Hampshire Estates Subdivision / Planned Development 
(PD)

II.  BACKGROUND

This request is to rezone a +/- 45.78 
acre portion of a 147.9 acre parcel 
from Agricultural Conservation (AC) 
to Residential-15 (R-15). The subject 
property, shown in the graphic to the 
right in red, is an undeveloped parcel 
of land along Camden Hwy. 

The applicant is requesting to rezone 
the +/-45.78 acres of the subject 
parcel closest to Camden Hwy. in 
order to develop the site at a higher 
residential density than AC zoning 
currently permits. 



A photo of the subject property as it exists today is shown below. 

Above: View of the subject property from the dirt access drive

The applicant intends to develop this land into a single family residential subdivision. The graphic 
below shows the preliminary subdivision plan for the property. As proposed development will 
consist of 46 total lots ranging from 0.4 to 0.85 acres in size, with Phase I of the development 
accounting for 21 of those lots. This preliminary subdivision design will be reviewed and evaluated 
in the event an R-15 zoning entitlement is granted.

While municipal water and sewer services are available in the vicinity of Camden Hwy., the 
applicant has indicated that they do not intend to annex into the City for municipal services. This 
is based on the expense of extending services to the site. As planned the development would be 
served by individual well and septic. 



As shown in the zoning map to the 
right, the subject property is 
currently zoned AC. This zoning 
designation is characterized by 
minimum lot sizes of over one acre, 
and is intended to preserve Sumter’s 
rural and agricultural character. 
While the AC district plays a critical 
role in preserving rural areas with 
low density development, the area 
near the intersection of Alice Dr. and 
Camden Hwy. is already 
experiencing developmental 
pressure. Over the past 20 years, the 
area has been undergoing a shift 
from its rural, agricultural roots 
towards higher density residential and commercial development in response to Sumter’s westward 
growth patterns.

The applicant intends to rezone the property to Large Single Family Lot Residential (R-15). Like 
the current AC zoning, an R-15 zoning designation would ensure the subject property remains 
primarily residential in nature, but would allow for higher density residential development than is 
currently permitted within the AC district. As per Article 3, Section 3.b.5.a of the Sumter County 
– Zoning and Developmental Standards Ordinance, if the property were rezoned to R-15, the 
future residential subdivision would be held to the following development standards  

Minimum Lot Size: 15,000 sf.
Minimum Lot width: 100ft.
Minimum Lot Depth: 120ft

The proposed R-15 rezoning will fall below the density levels displayed by nearby zoning districts. 
To the south, in the Bradford subdivision, R-9 zoning is present which allows for lot sizes as small 
as 9,000 sf., and directly to the west, the Hampshire Estates subdivision is operating under PD 
zoning that permits lot sizes as low as 3,500 sf. While this proposed R-15 zoning is out of scale 
with the densities of neighboring residential uses, it does contain the developmental standards 
necessary to accommodate the applicant’s proposed development.  

III. COMPATIBILITY WITH THE 2030 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

As shown in the 2030 Land Use Map on the following page, the property is located within the 
Suburban Development Area. The purpose of this land use area is to manage the existing growth 
patterns of Sumter. Suburban Development Area policies prioritize infill development, and call for 
new residential development to have a mix of housing types with residential densities of 3-4 units 
per acre. While the proposed R-15 zoning designation does not lend itself to diverse housing 
options or mixed use opportunities, the resulting minimum lot sizes of the R-15 district are in line 
with Suburban Development Area policies.  



However, the area is also 
influenced by a Priority 
Commercial Mixed Use Area. This 
designation represent areas along 
major corridors that are 
opportunities for high quality 
residential and mixed use 
development. Priority Commercial 
Mixed Use Area policies call for 
intentional mixing of uses, and 
increased design and use standards 
with the goal of creating a 
destination driven commercial and 
residential experience.  While the 
area in close proximity to the 
subject property has received this 
designation, at this time large scale commercial or mixed use development has yet to occur in the 
area.  

While consistent with the broader Suburban Development Area policies, the R-15 zoning 
designation would not allow for the type of higher density, pedestrian oriented development that 
would be most appropriate near a Priority Commercial Mixed Use Area.

IV. TRAFFIC REVIEW

Camden Highway (US 521) is a state maintained major arterial road with a 2017 annual average 
daily trip (AADT) count of 19,200 near the subject property. Alice Dr. is a state maintained minor 
arterial road with a 2016 AADT count of 5,700 near the subject property. 

While overall road network impacts will be evaluated at time of site development plan submission, 
it should be noted that the SUATS 2040 LRTP envisions Alice Dr. being extended across portions 
of the subject property to connect with N. Wise Dr. to the north, and the 2045 LRTP continues the 
this vision of future Alice Dr. extension. Any proposed development on the site will need to be 
reviewed within the context of this planned future road alignment, which could significantly alter 
and proposed subdivision plan.  

An excerpt from the LRTP related to Alice Drive Extension is on the following page.



V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The Alice Drive and Camden Highway corridors are slated to be the site of significant future 
residential and commercial development. In light of this pattern of growth, the current AC zoning 
designation is no longer appropriate for areas along this corridor. While a higher density zoning 
designation than the applicant’s proposed R-15 zoning would be most appropriate due to the 
subject property’s location in relation to the Priority Commercial Mixed use area, the requested R-
15 zoning designation is consistent with some Suburban Development area policies. However, it 
is staff’s interpretation that as a whole, the Sumter 2030 comprehensive plan favors higher 
residential densities in this area. 

The intersection of these two major corridors constitutes one of Sumter’s most viable locations to 
establish high quality mixed use development. Developing this area at lower residential densities 
in a piecemeal and uncoordinated manner wastes an opportunity to create a cohesive commercial 
and residential destination at this primary intersection. A coordinated effort to provide higher 
density residential development in the area would be more effective in ensuring the long term 
success and viability of the corridor, while providing an environment that can foster high quality 
mixed use development. 

VI. PLANNING COMMISSION – APRIL 24, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Department at its meeting on Wednesday, April 24, 2019 
recommended approval.



VII. COUNTY COUNCIL – MAY 14, 2019 – FIRST READING













Sumter County Council
May 14, 2019

Third / Final Reading

Planning Commission Staff Report

RZ 19-04, 2834 Beulah Cuttino Rd. (County)

THE REQUEST

Applicant: Donnie Ryan Beard & Robin Beard

Status of the Applicant: Property Owner

Request: A request to rezone a +/- 74.69 acre parcel from Residential-15 (R-
15) to Agricultural Conservation (AC)

Location: 2834 Beulah Cuttino Rd.

Size of Property: +/- 74.69 acres

Present Use/Zoning: Undeveloped / R-15

Proposed Use of Property: Residential 

Tax Map Reference: 222-00-01-013

Adjacent Property Land 
Use and Zoning:

North – Undeveloped / Residential-15 (R-15)
South – Undeveloped / Agricultural Conservation (AC)
East –  Residential-15 (R-15)
West – Residential-15 (R-15)

II.  BACKGROUND

This request is to rezone a +/- 74.69 acre parcel 
from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural 
Conservation (AC).

The applicant is requesting this rezoning in order 
to create a new 2.95 acre lot for the purposes of 
building a house.  The proposed dimensions of 
this new lot are not in conformance with R-15 
development standards. However, the 
dimensions are in conformance with Agricultural 
Conservation (AC) development standards. Also, 
the applicant has tentative future plans to 
construct an accessory structure (a personal work 



shop) towards the western side of the future 74.63 acre parcel.  Per the applicant, there are no 
further plans to develop the property other than to build a house and accessory structure on the 
proposed new lots. 

The above graphic shows the proposed subdivision of the larger property. The proposed 
subdivision does not meet required R-15 lot width to depth ratio requirements that are applicable 
to residential lots. Residential lots in the AC district are exempt from this standard, per Article 
8.e.13.f – Lots of the Sumter County Zoning & Development Standards Ordinance.  Furthermore, 
the proposed subdivision does not meet the R-15 lot minimum width requirement.  R-15 lots are 
required to have a minimum lot width of 100ft., per Article 3.b.5.a.  – Lot Requirements (Minimum) 
of the Sumter County Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance.

View of the property from Beulah Cuttino Rd. 
View of the Property from Beulah Cuttino Rd.  

The purpose of the R-15 zoning district is to recognize the essential suburban living character of 
significant portions of Sumter County where low and medium density single-family residential 
development is the predominant living environment of the existing and future population. 



The purpose of the AC zoning designation is to protect and preserve areas of the county which are 
presently rural or agricultural in character and use, and are uniquely suited to agricultural uses.  A 
few of the permitted uses in AC zoning allow for Single-Family dwellings, Agricultural Uses and 
Manufactured Housing/Mobile Homes.

The subject property is adjacent to R-15 zoning to the north, east, and west. The property is 
immediately adjacent to AC zoning to the south. 

Based on available water and sewer infrastructure location data, the property is over 9,000 ft. away 
from the closest sewer main and approximately 400 ft. away from water mains along US Hwy 15 
South. Without utility expansions, the property would require private septic tanks and private wells 
for development. In areas without sewer infrastructure, septic tank drain field areas that are 
established based on site specific soil conditions ultimately determine development density. 
Typically, this means development densities significantly less than 15,000 sf per lot as permitted 
under R-15 district standards.  

III. COMPATIBILITY WITH THE 
2030 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

As shown in the 2030 Land Use Map, the 
property is located within the Suburban 
Development planning area. However, the 
property is at the extreme edge of this planning 
area and is considered to be influenced by the 
Rural Development planning area located 
immediately to the south. 

The goal of the Suburban Development 
planning area is to scrutinize and manage 
existing development patterns. The goal of the 
Rural Development planning area is to support 



low-density residential development at no greater than one unit per acre and to support selected 
non-residential and agricultural uses in a relaxed regulatory climate. 

Specifically, this request is supported by the following Suburban Development policy:
 Low density development on private well and septic (one unit per acre or more) is 

appropriate adjacent to the rural planning area and military protection area, or in cases 
where environmental constraints dictate that low density residential is more appropriate. 

Additionally, since the site is considered to be influenced by Rural Development planning area, 
staff finds that the request is compatible with the following specific Rural Development policies:

 Residential densities shall be supported at no greater than one unit per acre. 
 Public sewer shall not be extended into the Rural Development planning area. (If public 

sewer was extended to this site it would put development pressure onto the immediately 
adjacent areas in the Rural Development area).  

Staff finds that the request is compatible with the 2030 Plan. 

IV. TRAFFIC REVIEW

Beulah Cuttino Rd. is an SCDOT owned two lane road which is functionally classified as a Minor 
Collector Road. In 2017, Beulah Cuttino Rd. had an annual daily trip count (AADT) of 750 
vehicles.

Where applicable, any proposed future development at the subject property will have its 
transportation impacts evaluated at time of site plan approval with appropriate mitigation measures 
required.

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The request to rezone +/- 74.69 acres from Residential-15 (R-15) to Agricultural Conservation 
(AC) is generally supported by the 2030 Future Land Use policies.  Additionally, there is a lack of 
adequate utility infrastructure for the site to develop at R-15 densities.

VI. PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 27, 2019

The Sumter City-County Planning Commission at its meeting on Wednesday, March 27, 2019, 
recommended approval of this request.

VII. COUNTY COUNCIL – APRIL 9, 2019 – FIRST READING

The Sumter County Council at its meeting on Tuesday, April 9, 2019, gave First Reading 
approval for this request. 

VIII. COUNTY COUNCIL – APRIL 23, 2019 – SECOND READING/PUBLIC 
HEARING

The Sumter County Council at its meeting on Tuesday, April 23, 2019, gave Second Reading 
approval for this request.



IX. COUNTY COUNCIL -  MAY 14, 2019 – THIRD / FINAL READING











ORDINANCE NO. 19-907                         

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SUMTER COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
SECTIONS 6-19, 6-20 AND 6-23 of CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE II, RELATING TO DOGS 

AND OTHER ANIMALS 

WHEREAS, Sumter County Council has previously enacted ordinances concerning 
dogs and other animals; and 

WHEREAS, those ordinances, as compiled, are promulgated, in pertinent part, in 
the Code of Ordinances for Sumter County, South Carolina in Chapter 6, Article II, 
Sections 6-19 through 6-27; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AT ITS REGULAR MEETING DULY 
ASSEMBLED AND BY THE AUTHORITY THEREOF: 

That Sumter County hereby amends its Code of Ordinances Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23, 
of Chapter 6, Article II, so that those sections shall read as follows:

1.  The following definitions shall be added to Section 6-19. Definitions

Tethering means attaching an animal to a stationary object by means of a chain, 
cable, rope, running line, harness or similar devise. It shall not include the use of an 
appropriate leash to walk a dog.  It shall not include appropriate leashes attached to 
trolley lines.
   Trolley line means a run line at least ten feet in length between two pulley stop points 
suspended at least three feet above the dog’s head which allows five feet lateral movement 
for the dog on each side of the primary trolley line as measured on the ground.  The 
secondary line attached to the dog shall have a rolling trolley freely moveable a distance of 
at least ten feet along the primary line with a spring/shock absorber attachment and 
swivels at both ends.  A trolley line must allow the dog free access to food, water and shelter 
and may restrain only one dog at a time.  All collars used must be made of nylon, leather or 
other durable and non-metallic material and must be fitted so as not to cause injury to the 
dog or embed itself in the dog’s neck.

2.  New subsection (f) shall be added to Section 6-20. Certain actions unlawful, which 
new subsection (f) provides:

(f) It shall be unlawful for any person to tether, fasten, chain, tie, restrain or otherwise 
cause an unattended dog to be fastened, chained, tied or restrained without limitation to 
houses, trees, garages or other stationary or immobile objects by means of a chain, cable 
rope, running line, harness or other physical restraint for the purpose of confinement 
except in circumstance in which all of the following requirement are met:

(1)  The tether must be attached to a properly fitting harness or collar and not 
directly to the dog’s neck.  All collars used must be made of nylon, leather or other durable 
and non-metallic material and must be fitted so as not to cause injury to the dog or embed 
itself in the dog’s neck. The tether must be at least 15 feet in length and positioned so that, 



at its greatest length, it prevents injury, strangulation or entanglement with any 
obstruction, man-made or natural, or another animal and shall employ a swivel on at least 
one end of the tether to minimize tangling.

(2)  If the tether is a chain it shall not be heavier than #2 gauge chain.
(3)  A tethered dog must have access to adequate shade, shelter, food and water.
(4)  A tethered dog may not be left unattended during extreme weather conditions 

including, but not limited to, extreme heat or near-freezing temperatures, hurricanes, 
thunderstorms or floods.

(5)  A tethered dog must be at least 15 feet from the edge of any public road or 
sidewalk and not in an area open to teasing or attacks, or where the ground is continuously 
wet or muddy.  A tethered dog must be tethered in a manner that will prevent the dog from 
leaving the owner’s property.

(6)  A tethered dog must be six months of age or older.
(7)  A tethered dog must not be sick or injured.
(8)  If there are multiple tethered dogs on one parcel of land, each dog must be 

tethered separately with sufficient space placed between the dogs to ensure that there is no 
contact with another tethered animal. 
Exemptions:  It is not unlawful for dogs in training for hunting or working to be tethered 
when supervised by the owner or a person with custody and control of the dog.

3.  Section 6-23. Disposition of unclaimed dogs.,  shall be revised to read as follows.

(a)  After any dog that is not positively identifiable has been impounded in 
the animal shelter for ten days and is unclaimed by its owner, the pound 
employees may dispose of such dog by a humane form of destruction.  
However, any dog that is not positively identifiable that has been 
impounded for six days may be turned over to any organization 
established for the purpose of caring for animals such as the Society for 
the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals or  to any person who is approved to 
adopt or rescue such a dog under the effective adoption/rescue policies and 
procedures, provided the requirements of S.C.Code Ann. 47-3-60 (2017) or 
any other state statute, do not require impoundment for a longer period.   
Complete records shall be kept by animal shelter officials as to the 
disposition of all animals impounded. 

(b)This section shall be implemented and enforced by employees or 
volunteers under the supervision of the County Administrator.



This Ordinance is done, ratified and adopted            , 2019.

THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
(SEAL)

BY:                                      
James T. McCain, Jr. 

ITS: Chairman

ATTEST:

                                         
Mary W. Blanding

Its: Clerk of County Council

First Reading:                                    , 2019.

Second Reading:                                    , 2019.

Third Reading and Adoption:                          , 2019.



ORDINANCE NO. 19-907                         

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SUMTER COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
SECTIONS 6-19, 6-20 AND 6-23 of CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE II, RELATING TO DOGS 

AND OTHER ANIMALS 

WHEREAS, Sumter County Council has previously enacted ordinances concerning 
dogs and other animals; and 

WHEREAS, those ordinances, as compiled, are promulgated, in pertinent part, in 
the Code of Ordinances for Sumter County, South Carolina in Chapter 6, Article II, 
Sections 6-19 through 6-27; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AT ITS REGULAR MEETING DULY 
ASSEMBLED AND BY THE AUTHORITY THEREOF: 

That Sumter County hereby amends its Code of Ordinances Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23, 
of Chapter 6, Article II, so that those sections shall read as follows:

This Ordinance is done, ratified and adopted            , 2019.



THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR SUMTER COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA (SEAL)

BY:                                      
James T. McCain, Jr. 

ITS: Chairman

ATTEST:

                                         
Mary W. Blanding

Its: Clerk of County Council

First Reading:                                    , 2019.

Second Reading:                                    , 2019.

Third Reading and Adoption:                          , 2019.



Agenda
Sumter County Council

Budget Workshop
Tuesday, May 14, 2019 - Held at 5:00 p.m.
County Administration Building, Third Floor

County Council Chambers -- 13 E. Canal Street, Sumter, SC

I. Call to Order – The Honorable James T. McCain, Jr., Chairman

II. Invocation: Member of Council, Member of Staff, or Member of the Public 

III. Pledge Of Allegiance:

IV. Action On Agenda:  Tuesday, May 14, 2019

V. New Business:  

1. Recap/Update On Budget Discussions Concerning Sumter County’s Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
Revenue Projections And Possible Actions Taken, If Necessary.  

2. Recap/Update On Budget Discussions Concerning Sumter County’s Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
Projected Expenditures And Possible Actions Taken, If Necessary.

3. Executive Session:  It May Be Is Necessary To Hold An Executive Session To Discuss An 
Economic Development Matter, A Legal Briefing, Personnel/Employment Matter, Or To 
Discuss Other Items Appropriate For Executive Session And Take Actions Thereafter.

4. Additional Agenda Item: ___________________________________________

VI. Old Business

1. None

VII. Adjournment



 

 FY 2020 Budget Information 
May 14, 2019 

 
 
    

 

1 
 

General Fund Recap 
The following table updates the current version of the General Fund Budget: 
 

 April 30 Version May 14 Version 
Estimated Revenue $50,541,170 $51,612,920 

   
Expenditures   

Personnel Services (wages, payroll taxes, 
fringe benefits) 

30,947,649 30,985,149 

Operating Expenditures 20,534,752 20,896,853 
   

Total operating expenditures $51,482,401 51,882,002 
   
Excess (deficit) of revenues over 

operating expenditures (941,231) (268,082 
   
   

 
 
The increase in revenue for this version of the budget is a result of updating trend information based upon 
current activity in ROD fees, EMS fees and building rentals. Adjustments were made to public safety 
operating expenditures as well as the addition of the summer youth program funding omitted from the April 
30 version. 

The carryover capital items are the special appropriations for the Sheriff, Detention Center and EMS building 
projects. 

  



 

 FY 2020 Budget Information 
May 14, 2019 

 
 
    

 

2 
 

 

The following table shows the historical trends in the budget: 

 

 

New Position Requests 
The Sheriff’s Office has requested a new position to fill the security slot for the Treasurer’s office. The 
Treasurer’s office security officer has been accommodated in the FY 2020 budget as a continuation of the 
status already in place. 

The Veteran’s Affairs office has requested one new position estimated to cost $40,000. 

The Coroner’s office has requested one new position that is pending funding by the State. 

The Solicitor’s office has requested 4 new non-attorney positions estimated to cost an additional $280,000.  

The Voter Registration/Elections office has 34 temporary part time slots requested and has funded the slot 
with State aid to cover costs  

 FY 2017 

Actual 

 FY 2018 

Actual 

 FY 2019 

Budget 

 FY 2020 

Proposed 

Budget 

Revenue and other financing sources

Taxes 31,786,395$  31,621,268$  32,491,612$  31,927,520$ 

Licenses and permits 2,665,193       3,997,690       2,491,500       2,724,500      

Intergovernmental 7,482,693       8,334,075       8,554,784       7,671,871      

Service revenue and charges 6,911,328       6,837,603       6,802,360       6,370,401      

Fines and forfeitures 1,750,269       1,488,775       1,661,000       1,682,000      

Miscellaneous 792,428           630,224           548,777           414,112          

Other financing sources 1,159,670       984,890           776,990           822,516          

Total revenue and other financing sources 52,547,976     53,894,525     53,327,023     51,612,920    

Operating expenditures

General government Administration 15,502,465     17,121,490     18,095,057     17,330,985    

Public Safety 19,548,052     20,729,813     21,080,558     21,582,653    

Health and Human Services 4,970,203       5,191,143       5,603,666       5,756,659      

Environment and Housing 304,577           304,673           333,370           321,471          

Recreation 4,785,049       5,252,607       5,445,994       5,346,704      

Transportation 170,609           202,719           194,314           200,030          

Public Utilities 140,000           144,264           150,000           150,000          

General Expenditures 839,574           986,825           1,188,500       1,193,500      

Total operating expenditures 46,260,529     49,933,534     52,091,459     51,882,002    

Revenue and other financing sources over operating expenditures 6,287,447       3,960,991       1,235,564       (269,082)        

Debt Service 513,044           521,339           521,684           521,515          

Capital outlay 2,258,649       1,401,541       2,839,184       1,375,000      

Change in Fund Balance 3,515,754$     2,038,111$     (2,125,304)$   (2,165,597)$  



 

 FY 2020 Budget Information 
May 14, 2019 

 
 
    

 

3 
 

Budget Schedule 
May 14, 2019 First reading of Budget and Bond Ordinances (Title Only) 

 

May 21, 2019 Budget Workshop to discuss other Agency funding, Purchases from Capital Bond and Other 
Special Revenue Funds 

 

May 28, 2019 Second reading and Public Hearing on budget and bond ordinances. 

 

June 11, 2019 Third Reading on Budget and Bond Ordinances. 

 

 
























	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	1) Chairman Or Vice Chairman Of Sumter County Council

	2. INVOCATION:  Council Member, Staff, or Member of the Public
	3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
	1) Regular Meeting Tuesday, April 23, 2019
	Minutes April 23, 2019 Final


	6. LAND USE MATTERS AND REZONING REQUESTS: 
	1) RZ-19-05 -- 526 Godwin Street (County) -- First Re
	4-23-19 Agenda
	RZ-19-05 - 526 Godwin St. 1st docx

	2) RZ-19-06 -- 1449 Camden Highway (County) -- First
	RZ 19-06 1449 Camden Hwy (county) 1st Rdg

	3) RZ-19-04 – Third Reading -- Beulah Cuttino Road (C
	RZ-19-04 - 2834 Beulah Cuttino Rd. (County) 3rd Rdg


	7. OTHER PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	1) None

	8. NEW BUSINESS:
	1) 19-908 – First Reading -- An Ordinance To Provide
	2) It  May Be Necessary To Hold An Executive Session

	9. OLD BUSINESS:
	1) 19-907 – Third Reading -- An Ordinance To Amend Su
	Ordinance 19-907 - Dog and Animal Ordinance amendment
	Ordinance 19-907 - AMENDMENT to Sumter County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6, Article II, Dogs and Other Animals, Sections 6-19, 6-20 and 6-23


	10. COMMITTEE REPORTS:
	1) Budget Workshop To Be Held At 5:00 p.m. On Tuesday
	Agenda Budget Workshop May 14, 2019
	FY 2020 budget workshop May 14 2019

	2) Report From Council Members On Other Meetings, Tra

	11. MONTHLY REPORTS:
	1) Mary McLeod Bethune Festival
	BETHUNE FESTIVAL PIC CHANDRA & ALLISON
	BETHUNE FESTIVAL SATURDAY CHANDRA & ALLISON

	2) Sheriff's Department Monthly Report
	SCSO April 2019 Monthly Report

	3) Emerging Leaders Graduation
	Emerging Leaders graduatoin Ceremony

	4) Bluegrass and B-B-Q
	Bluegrass and B-B-Q 2019

	5) Ribbon Cutting - Seaco

	12. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
	13. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	14. ADJOURNMENT:

